


 

Page 1 of 9 

Planning Commission Minutes 
August 31, 2020 

The Goldsboro Planning Commission met in regular session on Monday, August 31, 2020 
at 6:00 p. m., in the Large Conference Room located at the City Hall Annex Building, City 
Hall.  The following members were present or absent: 

Present: Ms. Barnett 
Mr. Bauer 
Mr. Boyette 
Mr. Slater 
Mr. Walston 
Mr. Waters 

Absent: None 

Also Attending:  Mr. Kenneth Talton, Assistant Planning Director 
Mr. Ron Lawrence, City Attorney 
Ms. Debra Creighton, Secretary 

Minutes – July 27, 2020 

Mr. Walston moved that the Commission’s minutes of July 27, 2020 be approved with as 
submitted.  Mr. Waters seconded the motion and the motion carried. 

Board of Adjustment Items: 

A. A-1-20 Major Home Occupation – 601 Gloucester Road 

Mr. Talton identified the location of the request and displayed a zoning map 
showing the subject property.   Mr. Talton said the applicant proposes the operation 
of a one-chair hair salon within her single-family dwelling.  

Mr. Talton said the subject property is located in a Residential 12 (R-12) zoning 
district.  Mr. Talton said the operation of a one-chair beauty salon is allowed as a 
major home occupation only after obtainment of a special use permit approved by 
the Board of Adjustment.  Mr. Talton said that all property owners residing with 100 
ft. of the subject property were notified of the major home occupation public 
hearing by mail. Mr. Talton said in addition, signs were placed on the property 
indicating that a public hearing for the major home occupation was scheduled. 

Mr. Talton read into the record the following approval criteria for Major Home 
Occupations requiring a Special Use Permit:  

1. Not more than one person who does not reside on the premises is employed by 
the home occupation; 

 



 

Page 2 of 9 

2. Not more than one exterior unilluminated sign not exceeding two square feet as 
visible evidence of the conduct of the operation; 

 
3. There is no outdoor display or storage of goods associated with the home 

occupation; 
 

4. No additional parking areas other than driveways shall be located in the required 
front setback; 

 
5. No wholesale or retail sales of goods shall occur on the premises; and 

 
6. Barber and beauty shops and hair, nail and skin care businesses shall be limited 

to one-chair operations. 
 

7. The major home occupation permit shall be issued to the applicant at the 
residence indicated on the application and shall not run with the land. 

 
8. Changes to the intensity, use or to another dwelling or structure on the property 

or a change in the applicant for which the original permit was issued shall 
require a new application for a special use permit. 

 
9. The Board of Adjustment shall conduct a public hearing for the proposed major 

home occupation and shall approve the special use permit before operation of 
the same. 

 
Mr. Talton read into the record Approval Criteria for all Home Occupations as follows: 

 
1. The business or occupation shall be located entirely within the principle 

structure or accessory structure. The business shall not occupy more than 
twenty-five percent of the total gross floor area of the combined structures 
(principle and accessory) or five hundred square feet, whichever is less.  

 
2. If an accessory building is used for a home occupation, such accessory building 

shall meet all required setbacks and height of a principle building within the 
residential zone in which it is located. If such accessory building does not meet 
setback requirements, it may be used only for the storage of goods and 
materials related to the home occupation.  

 
3. The principle person or persons providing the service or conducting the 

business shall reside in the dwelling on the premises.  
 

4. Any home occupation occupying an accessory building, notwithstanding the 
home occupations permitted under the definition of minor home occupations, 



 

Page 3 of 9 

shall require a public hearing by the Board of Adjustment before a special use 
permit is issued.  

 
5. Outdoor storage of goods and materials shall be prohibited. Storage of goods 

and materials are permissible only to the extent that they are incidental to the 
services being provided through the home occupation. Sales of goods and 
materials on the premises shall be prohibited except that items for sale 
incidental to the service being provided through the home occupation may be 
permitted.  

 
6. Home occupations shall not use any equipment or process that creates noise, 

vibration, smoke, dust, glare, fumes, odor or electronic interference detectable 
at the lot line. In the 5-55 Updated: July 15, 2019 case of electrical interference, 
no equipment or process shall be used which creates a visual or audible 
interference in radio or television receivers off the premises or causes 
fluctuations in line voltages off the premises.  

 
7. Home occupations shall not cause a change in the external appearance of the 

existing structures on the premises.  
 

8. The “residential character” of the premises and building within which the home 
occupation is being conducted shall be maintained at all times and shall not be 
changed.  

 
9. No traffic shall be generated by such home occupation in greater volume than 

would normally be expected in a residential neighborhood. Parking 
requirements shall conform to the requirements of this Ordinance, and shall be 
provided within an area on the lot other than the established front setback; the 
established front setback being that area from the front property line to the 
front line of the building extending side lot line to side lot line.  

 
10. All vehicles used in the conduct of the home occupation shall be of a size, and 

located on the premises in such a manner, so as not to disrupt the quiet nature 
and visual quality of the neighborhood. 

 
Mr. Talton cited the findings of fact as follows: 
 

• The subject property is located at 601 Gloucester Road, Goldsboro, North 
Carolina.   

 
• The subject property is located inside the City limits of the City of Goldsboro. 

 
• City water and sewer services are available to serve the property.   

 



 

Page 4 of 9 

• The home and lot are located in an R-12 (Residential) zoning district.   
 

• Major home occupations are allowed in the R-12(Residential) zoning district 
only after the obtainment of a Special Use Permit approved by the Board of 
Adjustment. 

 
• The applicant is proposing to enclose an existing one-car garage (13 ft. x 27 

ft.) for approximately 400 sq. ft. for the operation of the major home 
occupation (one-chair salon) if the special use permit is approved by the 
Board of Adjustment.  (See attached application, Appendix A; see floor plan 
Appendix B) 

 
• A public hearing was scheduled for the proposed major home occupation in 

the Large Conference Room located at the City Hall Annex Building, Room 
206 at 200 N. Center Street in Goldsboro, North Carolina for August 31, 2020 
and advertised in Goldsboro’s News-Argus on August 13, 2020 and August 
20, 2020.  (See Appendix C) 

 
• The submitted application and accompanying plans comply with the 

provisions of the Home Occupation Ordinance in accordance with Section 
5.5.4 Special and Conditional Use Specific Regulations 

 
Mr. Talton read into the record the Special Use Permit Criteria for Approval by the 
Board of Adjustment as follows: 
 
If the application and accompanying plans for a special use permit comply with all 
the provisions of the Home Occupation Ordinance, the Board of Adjustment shall 
issue the requested permit unless it concludes, based upon the information 
submitted at the hearing that if completed as proposed the development: 

 
1. Will substantially endanger the public health or welfare; or 

 
2. Will substantially injure the beneficial use of adjoining or abutting property; 

or 
 

3. Will not be in harmony with existing development and uses within the area in 
which it is located; or 

 
4. Will not be in general conformity with the Comprehensive Plan, 

Thoroughfare Plan or other plan officially adopted by City Council. 
  
Note:  The permit issuing Board may not attach additional conditions that modify 
or alter the specific requirements set forth in this Ordinance, unless the 
development in question presents extraordinary circumstances. Extraordinary 



 

Page 5 of 9 

circumstances may include unexpected conditions that negatively affect nearby 
residential uses or previously unrecognized external consequences that require 
mitigation. All additional conditions or requirements shall be entered on the 
permit and are enforceable in the same manner and same extent as any other 
requirement of this Ordinance.  
 
Without limiting the foregoing, the permit issuing Board may attach to a permit a 
condition limiting the permit to a specified duration. 

 
Due to NC Gov. Cooper’s Executive Order 147 restricts mass gatherings due to 
COVID-19; therefore, public attendance of the Planning Commission was restricted 
to those who are on the agenda.  Mr. Talton stepped into the lobby area and read 
the approval criteria for the participants who wished to speak for or against this 
item.   

Mr. Boyette opened the public hearing and asked whether anyone wished to speak 
in opposition of the Major Home Occupation request.  

Mr. James Jones, 207 Glen Oak Drive, Goldsboro, NC was sworn in to speak to the 
Board of Adjustment regarding this case.  Mr. Jones stated is a resident of Handley 
Acres.  Mr. Jones said the request should not be approved as it is against the 
Restrictive Covenants of Spring Valley subdivision.  Mr. Jones said he has a petition 
of 66 signatures of the residents of Spring Valley and Handley Acres who are 
opposed to the home occupation.  Mr. Jones said he was providing copies of the 
Spring Valley Restrictive Covenants, signed petition and Ms. Fryar-Oliver’s deed 
showing the reference to the covenants.  Mr. Jones said the request is against the 
nature of a single-family residential neighborhood in that it is a business operation.  
Mr. Jones said this type of business would cause additional traffic through the 
neighborhood.  Mr. Jones said the neighborhood currently has issues traffic due to 
the greenway and people parking along both sides of the streets. 

Ms. Nancy McCall, 205 Glen Oak Drive, Goldsboro, NC was sworn in to speak to the 
Board of Adjustment.   Ms. McCall said that she is opposed to the request, as it 
would be violating the Spring Valley Restrictive Covenants.  Ms. McCall said she has 
lived here for 28 years and there have no businesses in the neighborhood.  Ms. 
McCall said she is very concerned about resale values of the homes if the salon is to 
be permitted.  Ms. McCall said she understood the request is only for a one-chair 
salon but knows that hair salons often are behind and then there are multiple 
persons waiting.  Ms. McCall said she has great concern regarding parking for the 
business along with the current issues of on-street parking.  Ms. McCall said the 
sanitation department often could not get through the street due to the cars parked 
on both sides. 



 

Page 6 of 9 

Mr. Gerard McCall 205 Glen Oak Drive, Goldsboro, NC was sworn in to speak to the 
Board of Adjustment.  Mr. McCall said the issues with the on-street parking has 
caused the sanitation department delays attempting to get around the parked cars.  
Mr. McCall said the restrictive covenants have been in place since 1965 and no one 
has a home business.   

Mr. Christian Dumond, 602 Gloucester Road, Goldsboro, NC was sworn in to speak 
to the Board of Adjustment.  Mr. Dumond said the concern he has is regarding the 
clientele traffic associated with a beauty salon.  Mr. Dumond said both Handley 
Acres and Spring Valley residents are all in opposition of this request.  Mr. Dumond 
said ignoring the Restrictive Covenants would create ill will from the neighbors.   

Mr. Boyette opened the public hearing and asked whether anyone wished to speak 
in favor of the Major Home Occupation request.  

Ms. Cartwright, Goldsboro, NC was sworn in to speak to the Board of Adjustment.  
Ms. Cartwright said that her daughter has been a hard worker and dedicated to her 
profession.  Ms. Cartwright said she wants to see her daughter succeed and continue 
her work.   

Mr. Boyette opened the public hearing and asked whether the applicant would like 
to speak on the Major Home Occupation request.  

At this time the applicant, Ms. Washandra Fryer-Oliver, 601 Gloucester Road, 
Goldsboro came forward to speak to the Board of Adjustment.  Ms. Fryar-Oliver said 
it saddened her to hear her neighbors speak against her.   Ms. Fryar-Oliver said she 
was renting a booth on Ash Street when Matthew came through and the salon 
owner could not reopen.  Ms. Fryar-Oliver said she then moved to another location 
on Ash Street and now Covid-19 has closed that location.  Ms. Fryar-Oliver said she 
only wants to have her business at the home to maintain her clientele and her 
cosmetology license.  Ms. Fryar-Oliver said she has been a member of the Goldsboro 
Chamber of Commerce since 2009.  Ms. Fryar-Oliver said she has her Masters in 
Cosmetology and teaches; she said if she cannot operate, she could lose her license.  
Mr. Fryar-Oliver said there is a circular drive and the clients would use not the street 
for parking. 

Mr. Bauer asked the hours of operation and any signage.  Ms. Fryar-Oliver said 9:30 
a.m. to 5:00 p.m. and no signage. 

Mr. Boyette asked whether anyone else wished to be heard. Having none, Mr. 
Boyette closed the public hearing.  Mr. Boyette asked the members if there was any 
discussion regarding the Major Home Occupation request. 

Mr. Ron Lawrence, City of Goldsboro Attorney, reminded the Board they must look 
at #3 of the Special Use Permit criteria for approval in that it specifies “and” 
therefore, they must review the immediate existing areas.   



 

Page 7 of 9 

 
Mr. Slater said would we consider the uses in proximity and surrounding her 
property.  Mr. Bauer said the covenants go with the land and #3 would not be in 
harmony with the existing development. 
 
Ms. Barnett made a motion to approve the Major Home Occupation request.  Mr. 
Boyette asked for a second; having none, the motion failed. 
 
Mr. Walston made a motion to deny on the basis the request would not be in 
harmony with #3 of the Special Use Permit criteria for approval due to the Spring 
Valley Restrictive Covenants.  Mr. Bauer seconded the motion, Ms. Barnett and Mr. 
Slater were in opposition, and the vote carried 3-2 to deny the Major Home 
Occupation request.   

 

Planning Commission Items:  

A. Site Plans 

(1) Site-17-20 Precision Tune – The property is located on the south side of N. Spence 
Avenue 

Mr. Talton indicated the location of the request and displayed a map showing 
the subject property.  Photographs of the site were displayed.  Mr. Talton said 
applicant is requesting site plan approval proposing a facility as an automobile 
inspection, repair and service center.  Mr. Talton said the submitted site plan 
indicates a two-story, brick-veneer commercial building consisting of 
approximately 7,017 sq. ft.   

Mr. Talton said the floor plan has been provided which consists of a waiting 
room, laptop/internet bar, kid zone, offices, parts/supply storage area and 
restrooms for customers and employees of the business on the first floor of the 
facility fronting Spence Avenue.  Mr. Talton said ten (10) garage bays are located 
at the rear of the facility for automobile inspection, service and repair.  Mr. 
Talton said the second floor consists of a mezzanine used for heating and air 
equipment including mechanical exhaust systems and miscellaneous storage. 

Mr. Talton said parking for the business requires a total of 47 paved parking spaces 
have been provided including 2 handicap accessible parking spaces.   Mr. Talton 
said 17 spaces would be located in front of the facility and along Spence Avenue 
to include 2 handicap accessible parking spaces.  Mr. Talton said 27 parking spaces 
would be located along the western property line.  Mr. Talton said 3 parking 
spaces would be located adjacent to the principle building in close proximity to 
the main entrance.   



 

Page 8 of 9 

Mr. Talton said that NCDOT has requested the sidewalks not be installed due to 
future road improvements.  Mr. Talton said a modification to install City sidewalks 
due to the existing site conditions and recommendation from NCDOT to refrain 
from installation due to future road improvements and a fee-in-lieu would need 
to be made. 

Mr. Bauer moved that the Commission recommend approval of the Site and 
Landscape Plan with modifications of the installation of City sidewalks.  Mr. 
Walston seconded the motion and the motion carried. 

B. Subdivision Plans 

(1) S-6-20 Habitat for Humanity – The property is located on the south side of W. 
Grantham Street between N. Alabama Avenue/W. US 70 Hwy. and the west side 
of N. Georgia Avenue  
 
Mr. Talton indicated the location of the request and displayed a map showing 
the subject property.  Photographs of the site were displayed.   
 
Mr. Talton the applicant has recently acquired nine (9) existing private parcels 
located on the south side of W. Grantham Street between N. Alabama 
Avenue/W. US 70 Hwy. and the west side of N. Georgia Avenue.  Mr. Talton said 
the applicant intends to recombine and divide portions of previously subdivided 
and recorded lots for the purpose of sale and residential development.  Mr. 
Talton said according to the City of Goldsboro’s Unified Development Code, the 
applicant is required to follow the City’s subdivision approval process since the 
number of total number of existing lots will be increased from 9 to 12. 

Mr. Talton said currently all existing lots are vacant with the exception of Lot #9 
that is occupied by an existing single-family dwelling.  Mr. Talton said the 
applicant intends to demolish existing home on Lot#9 and replace with a new 
home meeting the requirements of the Residential 6 (R-6) zoning district. 

Ms. Barnett moved that the Commission recommend approval of the Preliminary 
Subdivision.    Mr. Walston seconded the motion and the motion carried. 

C. Upcoming Meeting Items – August 31, 2020 

A. Rezoning Requests:  

(1) Z-4-20 606 N. Berkeley Blvd., site plan is associated with the rezoning 
request. 

(2) Z-5-20 1804 Berkeley Blvd., site plan is associated with the rezoning 
request. 



 

Page 9 of 9 

Adjournment: 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:43 p.m. 

  
______________________________ 

       Debra Creighton, Secretary 
       Goldsboro Planning Commission 
Approved:  __________________ 










































